
Wednesday, April 19, 2023 
Recreation & Parks Advisory Commission 

Minutes 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL - The Recreation & Parks Advisory Commission meeting was held 
at the Operations and Maintenance Facility and was called to order by Chairperson Nolen at 
6:10 P.M. 
Chairperson Nolen administered the oath of office to the four new commissioners.  Commissioners 
Birdnecklace, Murray, Parks and Purcell.   

 
Commission Members present:  
Mark Nolen, At-large (Chair)  
Dwain Erickson, West (Vice Chair) 
William Birdnecklace, West 
Latrina Caldwell, At-large 
Johnny Hoang, At-large 
Deborah Lande, Central 
Taylor Murray, East 
Terry Parks, At, Large 
Judy Purcell, Central 

   Kellina Quigley, At-large 
 
   Commission Members absent: 

Joe Gomez, At-large 
Johnny Hoang, At-large 
Miriam Osammor, East   
Councilmember XP Lee 

 
Brooklyn Park Staff present: 
Brad Tullberg, Director of Recreation and Parks 
Marcus Hill, Parks and Facilities Manager 
Greg Hoag, Parks and Buildings Manager, Operations and Maintenance  

   Jeanine Machan, Administrative Assistant 
 
 

2. OPEN FORUM-PUBLIC COMMENT AND RESPONSE  
1. Odney Hegrenes, 3749 Dunbar Knoll, Brooklyn Park.  He stated that he represents the pickleball 

players of Brooklyn Park. He stated there are approximately 340 members in the pickleball groups. 
He said that pickleball is the fastest growing sport.  He stated that presently the city has 6 pickleball 
courts that are 6 -7 years old. When the referendum was passed for $26 million it was promised 
that 8 more would be added. That has not happened. He said they have plans for the empty tennis 
courts next to the pickleball courts to turn 2 of them into pickleball courts leaving one tennis court.  
He said they have spoken to Director Tullberg. He stated that he wanted the commission to know 
that the pickleball players are out there and very active.  
 

2. Three representatives from the Osseo Maple Grove Hockey Association (OMGHA):  
Brian Grant, 10885 Quaker Lane N, Maple Grove. 
Chuck Sawicky, 6607 104th Cir N, Brooklyn Park. He stated they were there to respond to the idea 
of rink 2 at the Community Activity Center being taken away. He stated that North Metro Hockey 
Association is potentially folding into the OMGHA so keeping that in mind keeping the 2nd rink for 
hockey is very important. He said the number one concern is ice availability.  He said OMGHA 
houses Osseo, Maple Grove, Brooklyn Park kids is about 1100 players, making it one of the largest 
associations in the state. He stated they have a very good charitable gambling program which 
allows investment in the kids. He stated they just hosted the National Tournament at both the Maple 
Grove and Brooklyn Park rinks, because they have the resources to do that. He stated they offer 
free first year hockey to all new skaters.  He said they have discounted goalie fees and they offer 
free hockey to girls’ mites which is the kindergarten / first grade age. He stated they have a $20,000 



financial aide program offer for members. He stated “try hockey for free” events at both Maple 
Grove and Brooklyn Park. He stated they invest in the kids in the community and are growing the 
game of hockey in youth from preschool through high school. He stated that the ice in rink 2 is very 
important to them to grow the game especially in Brooklyn Park. He stated that hockey is not done 
by city boundaries but by high school boundaries. He stated the OMGHA serves Park Center, 
Osseo and Maple Grove. He stated that it is to not only have success for the city but for the high 
school level as well.  
Brandon Erickson, 8140 Yellowstone Ln N, Maple Grove. He stated there are 80 Brooklyn Park kids 
from North Metro Hockey Association plus 50 – 60 that are part of the OMGHA already.  He stated 
they are trying to get ice time for them.  
 

3. Four representatives from the Three Rivers Figure Skate Club (TRFSC) 
Sarah Fercho, 10857 Jersey Drive N, Brooklyn Park.  She stated she is resident of Brooklyn Park 
and is the President of the TRFSC. She said TRFSC is a nonprofit organization founded in 1995 
and based at the Community Activity Center (CAC) in Brooklyn Park. She stated they are here to 
explain the impact of removing one of the ice rinks from the CAC. She stated that there are 75 
members and 12 coaches in the TRFSC, many of whom grew up in Brooklyn Park.  She said they 
skate 12 months out of the year at the CAC.  She stated they host the United States Figure Skating 
Competition, produce a ice show in partnership with the Brooklyn Park and Champlin Skating 
School, they host 6 USFS test sessions a year, they purchase almost $100.000 of ice time a year.  
She states they bring in Brooklyn Park residents and residents from surrounding communities in the 
CAC. She stated the ice show last weekend sold over 750 tickets. She said the CAC has been 
home to the TRFSC for the past 30 years.  She stated that she took the survey and in her mindset 
was things in addition, not taking away what exists today.  She said that a rink removal would 
diminish their ability to host events which generates the revenue needed to survive as an 
organization. She asked that the commission consider their point of view and all of the current ice 
patrons including TRFSC in all phases of your CAC redevelopment planning. She stated the 
skaters and families are at the CAC daily 12 months out of the year. She stated the users of the 
space deserve to be part of the conversation but can also offer valuable input regarding the future 
of the space. 
Sarah Strom, 10350 Quail Cir N, Brooklyn Park  She stated she is a resident of Brooklyn Park. She 
has 3 daughters, 2 of whom play hockey with the North Metro League and will be moving into the 
OMGHA and all 3 participate in figure skating. She stated that in the past six years her family has 
been at the ice rink daily. She stated it is an integral part of their lives. She stated that as a resident 
and as a parent it is disappointing that one of the rinks would be removed without having had any 
conversation with the people who actually use it. She stated it feels sneaky and underhanded, to be 
honest. She stated the fact that ice time is so valuable within the northern suburbs and hard to 
obtain between the hockey associations and figure skating, the reason they get to do so much is 
because there are two links. She stated the “learn to skate” program has been steadily increasing in 
numbers and becoming more diverse and representative of the community’s diversity. She said 
while we don’t live in a bubble the goal of the community center should serving the community but 
we are not the only people that benefit from it. In particular we have three of the five city goals; 
having a welcoming community strengthened by our diversity, having quality infrastructure making 
Brooklyn Park a unique destination and a balanced economic environment that empowers 
businesses and people to thrive. She states that the two rinks attracting multiple hockey 
tournaments including the National level Tournament brings together members from Brooklyn Park, 
Champlin, Maple Grove and from across the state and across the country to Brooklyn Park.  They 
are spending their money at our restaurants and using local businesses proving an influx of cash, 
bringing people here that wouldn’t think to come here. She states it would be detrimental to take 
away one of the rinks to add basketball. She stated there is an opportunity to add to the community 
but do not take away. 
Andrea Melberg Thompson, 8655 Riverview Ln, Brooklyn Park.  She stated she and her family are  
residents of Brooklyn Park for 14 years. She said her first favorite place in Brooklyn Park is River 
Park as  she walks there daily. She said her second favorite place is the CAC.  She states she 
became more of a community member from being at the CAC many times a week with her child 
who is a skater. She states skating has been important to her daughter.  Her daughter has made 
friends with kids from other schools through skating. The TRFSC is unique for Brooklyn Park as the 



surrounding communities do not have skate clubs.  She asked that staff consider keeping both 
rinks. 
Alissa Ventura, 10032 Elm Ave N, Brooklyn Park.  She states her family are residents of Brooklyn 
Park. She said through the community center they felt a part of the community. She said her 
daughters are part of the TRFSC. She said having the two ice rinks provides the opportunity to do 
the ice show and have a club that is unique. She asks that it be considered what it would be mean 
to them to take away one of the links. It would be detrimental to the club and to the kids.  
 

4. Sam Paurus, President of Champlin Park Youth Hockey Association (CPYHA) . He stated that the 
CPYHA are also tenant of the Brooklyn Park ice arenas.  He stated they purchase between 300 – 
400 ice hours a year during the winter season. He said the CAC has been an important asset to 
CPYHA as it meets all of their team needs otherwise they would have to look elsewhere to find ice 
which is nearly impossible. He states somewhere between 30 – 50% of the CPYHA is Brooklyn 
Park residents. The ice needs for the CPYHA will increase once the North Metro Hockey is 
dissolved as some of the members will most likely join CPYHA.  

 
5. Monica Dillenburg, 4740 Oxborough Ct N, Brooklyn Park.  She stated she is a former member of 

RPAC. She said she was the one who brought awareness to the other groups about the plans to 
eliminate one of the ice rinks. She said she heard loud and clear one of the issues was that the city 
was losing money due to not selling ice. She said she asked around and was told that the ice was 
not for sale on the IceTimeFinder.com and RinkFinder.com.  She states she logged on and found 
that the dates listed for Brooklyn Park ended in December 2022 and there was nothing after that. 
She said that it has been discussed many times that it is necessary to have a signature place for 
people to come to Brooklyn Park.  She said Edinburgh Golf Course is such a place. She said the 
other is the CAC. She said not many other communities have ice.  She states we don’t advertise 
the ice is for sale. She states we need to give the rink another chance by pushing the ice for sale.  
She states she prefers to pay for ice where she lives not to go out of the community.  She said she 
was at the CAC to set up for the TRFSC ice show from Wednesday through Sunday and the rink 
was only used twice otherwise it was empty. She said basketball is played at the schools both in 
winter and summer.  She said she does not know who would play basketball at the CAC but she 
said hockey is played here.  

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 
A Motion was made to Approve the April 19, 2023 agenda by Commissioner Lande and second 
by, Commissioner Erickson. 
Motion unanimously approved. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
  
A Motion was made to Approve the March 15, 2023 minutes by Commissioner Erickson and 
second by, Commissioner Caldwell.   

    Motion unanimously approved. 
 

5. ACTION ITEMS 
1. ANNUAL DEER HUNT 
Director Tullberg  gave an oral  report with PowerPoint presentation on the reasons for the Annual 
Deer Hunt, shared results of the 2022 hunt, along with the aerial survey results of the January 2023 
deer population count.  Based on the provided data, staff recommended to the Commission that they 
recommend to City Council to move forward with the fall of 2023 Controlled Deer Hunt. 
2023 Hunt Locations: 
• Zone #1 – Northwoods Park 
• Zone #5 – Palmer Lake 
• Zone #10 - Greenhaven Park 
• Zone #11 - Brookdale Park Open Space (Palmer Lake) 
2023 Hunt Dates: 



•    October 2 & 3, October 4th would be reserved as a makeup date in case of inclement weather 
•    October 30 & 31, November 1st would be reserved as a makeup date in case of inclement 

weather 
• November 13 & 14, November 15th would be reserved as a makeup date in case of inclement 

weather 
Questions/Comments 
Commissioner Purcell asked what is the Isaac Walton?   Director Tullberg responded that Izaak 
Walton League is a nonprofit environmental organization who owns a large property on the river on 
West River Road.   
Commissioner Purcell asked why can’t there be a hunt there?  Director Tullberg stated that have had 
a number of residents upset that the city conducts a deer hunt. These residents lobbied the Izaak 
Walton League to prohibit hunt.  The board voted mid-way through the 2021 hunt season to ban the 
hunt. The only access to Banfill Island is through their property. 
Commissioner Erickson asked if the Metro Bowhunters was a new group?  Director Tullberg stated 
no, they have been the group that has conducted the hunts since 2011.  
Commissioner Lande asked for clarification of the areas with the highest count of deer on the aerial 
slide – what zones are they?  Director Tullberg stated one is the challenge is where Mississippi 
Gateway Regional Park (MGRP) and River Park.  The MGRP is not on the hunt due to the 
redevelopment.  We used to hunt the area of the regional trail but it went away due to housing 
development along the trail.  In a couple of years staff will recommend this location be added back in 
the MGRP after the construction is completed.  
Commissioner Murray asked if Banfill Island can be accessed by boat or canoe?  Director Tullberg 
stated it cannot be easily accessed and then if a deer is harvested the challenge becomes on how to 
get it out.  
A Motion was made to Recommend To City Council To Authorize The 2023 Deer Management 
Program And Approve The Agreement With The Metro Bowhunters Resource Base To 
Conduct The 2023 Hunt. by Commissioner Parks and second by Commissioner Murray. 
Vote was taken: In favor 9, apposed 1 

 
6. GENERAL INFORMATION - PRESENTATIONS  

1.  TOUR OF OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 
Greg Hoag, Operations and Maintenance Parks and Buildings Manager introduced Director of  
Operations and Maintenance Dan Ruiz and Forester Operations and Maintenance Aki Jacobs.  
Manager Hoag provided a PowerPoint presentation (see attached), an overview of the relationship 
with Recreation and Parks and the highlights of work performed by O & M Department with emphasis 
on the forest operations around the Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) issue.  
Comments and Questions: 
Commissioner Murray asked what trees are being planted in place of the ash that are coming down?  
Manager Hoag stated that there are about 25 varieties of different trees that are being planted. As part 
of the grants staff are not allowed to plant maple, spruce and apple.   
Manager Hill asked how the emerald ash borer kills the trees?  Forester Jacobs replied that it is the 
larvae that hatches from the eggs laid by the borer to tunnel (bore) into the trees right under the bark 
destroying the subcutaneous layer which supplies the nutrients from the roots to the tree.  
Commissioner Purcell does the beetle or larvae have any predators?  Forester Jacobs replied in its 
natural setting it does. Unfortunately, here is not its natural setting. They have been releasing some 
small parasitic wasps but it is yet to be determined if this will help. Whether these wasps can survive 
our winters is yet to be seen. As of right now there is not the checks and balances in place to stop the 
EAB.   
Commissioner Lande asked how staff is communicating with the community what to do when they find 
an issue or how to prevent?   Manager Hoag said that staff have met with the Communications team 
to do a better job of communicating with the residents.   
Director Ruiz said that there has been communication through Cable 12 and Channel 4 news.  Also, 
Rainbow Tree who is the outside vendor that has a contract with the city to treat the ash trees has 
been sending out post cards each year to residents promoting treatment.  
Commissioner Erickson asked about the private businesses and what is the status?  Manager Hoag 
states that it is all going to be an ongoing issue on both private and public property. Hoag stated that 
ordinance changes have been incorporated that include the EAB and trees that are dead.  



Director Ruiz stated the next five years are the most critical.  As most untreated ash trees will die 
during this time. He also stated that the city is lobbying for more money from the state to deal with the 
issue for both the city and the residents.  The state provided money during the 1970’s with the Dutch 
Elm disease but has not yet done the same with EAB.  

 
7. OLD BUSINESS    

1. RFCA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR YOUTH AND TEEN RECREATION 
CENTER 

2. RFCA AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR HC YOUTH SPORTS PLAYGROUND GRANT 
3. RFCA AUTHORIZATION OF MISSISSIPPI GATEWAY REGIONAL PARK FUNDING    

    No comments or questions. 
 

8. WRITTEN REPORTS 
1.  PROGRAM AND EVENTS UPDATE 
2.  LIST OF EVENTS 
3.  PARK PROJECTS UPDATE  
4.  DIRECTORS REPORT 
Director Tullberg highlighted the 2023 Partner of the Year Award Program Specialist Erin Bonikowske 
received from Reach for Resources.   
 

9. DISCUSSION ITEMS  
1. OPEN FORUM – QUESTION AND ANSWERS 
No comments or questions. 
2. GET OUT TO THE PARKS? 
Director Tullberg reported that the city attorney stated that if staff were to send out a invite for RPAC to 
meet as a group to walk a park on say a Saturday morning, it would need to be posted at City Hall as 
a possible quorum/meeting.   
Commissioner Erickson explained for the benefit for the newer commissioners the idea of meeting to 
walk the parks as a social gathering not in a meeting forum. This would be a good chance to get to 
know the parks and each other.  
Further discussion was held between the commissioners on how to organize and pick a park. It was 
decided that staff could put together a list of recommended parks and possible programming activities 
such as pickleball or cricket for the group to walk and see in action.  
Director Tullberg recommended that instead of a bus tour this year we could have a tree planting and 
picnic this year.  It was agreed that it would be in August.   
Commissioner Erickson asked about the annual tree sale.  Manager Hoag stated staff purchased 175 
trees and there are approximately only 20 left. Pick up day is May 6th.  Check the website for 
availability.  
 

10.  VERBAL REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS  
1. CITY COUNCIL UPDATE –  
No update 
2. CITY PLANNING COMMISSION UPDATES –  
No Update 
3. KEY TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION AT THE NEXT RPAC MEETING  

• MAY 17 – RECREATION PROGRAMMING UPDATE  
• JUNE 21 – TEEN CENTER – POSSIBLE MEET AT ZANEWOOD 
• JULY – NO MEETING 
• AUGUST – TREE PLANT AND PICNIC 

4. KEY DATES FOR FUTURE MEETINGS/EVENTS 
• AUGUST 7, 2023 – JOINT CITY COUNCIL/COMMISSIONERS MEETING  

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 



A Motion was made by Commissioner Erickson to close the meeting, second by Commissioner 
Purcell.  
Motion unanimously approved.   
Adjourned by Chairperson Nolen at 7:45 P.M. 

 
Submitted respectfully, 
Jeanine Machan 
Secretary 


	Wednesday, April 19, 2023
	Recreation & Parks Advisory Commission

